
2199 Short duration [ RAJYA SABHA ] discussion on 2200 
discussion in Gauhati 

[Shri K. S. Ramaswamy] 
good and the Government will certainly bear 
them in mind when Ihey frame the rules and 
they will take all the suggestions into 
consideration. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The 
question is: 

"That  the  Bill,  as    amended,   bo 
passed." 

The motion was adopted. 

SHORT    DURATION   - DISCUSSION 
RE    HAPPENINGS    IN    GAUHATI ON   

THE   REPUBLIC   DAY 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Banka 
Behary Das, you take 15 'minutes and the rest 
of the Members will take 10 minutes each. 

SHRI BANKA BEHARY DAS (Orissa): 
Madam, I raise a discussion on the happenings 
in Gauhati on the Republic Day, particularly 
in the context of the Union Home Minister's 
statement expressing profound distress after a 
visit to that area. Madam Deputy Chairman, 
while I seek your permission to raise this 
discussion on the happenings in Gauhati, I 
have no hesitation to say that all those 
incidents that took place in Gauhati have left a 
deep scar in the mind of the nation. The loss 
of property and the devastation that was 
caused there was very great. I would rather go 
a step further and say that the deeper wound 
that has been caused to the body-politic of the 
country because of those happenings has to be 
seriously considered. I will not go into all the 
incidents that have taken place in Gauhati 
either on the Republic Day or on the fol-
iowing days. But I want to emphasise from the 
very start that it was a deep-laid conspiracy on 
the part of certain sections there in Assam and 
they took advantage of the discontent that 
prevailed in Assam because of various factors. 
The Lachit Sena entered into a conspiracy to 
take ad- 

vantage of the discontent that was prevailing 
in Assam. But I am sorry to say that the Assam 
Government not only failed miserably on that 
day but previously also. In spite of the red 
signals given by the Lachit Sena and others, 
they did not take any steps to see that such a 
situation does not take place in that State. 
When I say that it was a preplanned move, I 
have evidence before me. On that Republic 
Day when all those young people were on the 
rampage and were looting the property of the 
non-Assamese and a few Assamese also, they 
were using certain equipment and certain 
chemicals which they also left while they were 
destroying those properties. We have come to 
know that the Government also got certain 
spraying "machines which were used by them 
for spraying petrol to burn those properties. 
They used these chemicals and equipments to 
destroy Godrej almirahs and other difficult 
things. And all this could not have happened 
without preplanning. 

Before I go into all these aspects, I want to 
highlight a few incidents that took place 
before that famous Republic Day. Here, 
Madam, I want to tell you that a few days 
before the incident, two gentlemen from 
Naxalbari—-one of the two a top leader—
went to Gauhati and discussed with Lachit 
Sena people and with some other gentlemen 
also. I have got the names of the persons with 
whome those gentlemen discussed and said 
they would like to enter into an alliance or a 
conspiracy with the Lachit Sena. If those 
names are still not available to him. T can 
supply him those names with whom these two 
gentlemen discussed a few days before the 
Republic Day incidents. 

Madam. I want to say that a few days 
before, on the 13th January, a certain 
organisation observed 'he 'Assam Integrity 
Dav*. They took out a procession and in that 
procession slogans were raised that A«sam is 
for A^amese, Assa^i te » sovereign    territory.    
Also anoth^ sftdgn 
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was raised in    that    very procession   . 
saying    "From Naxalbari to Titaba".   i In 
that procession these slogans -v^re raised and  
also there     are     reports that some of those 
young gentlemen who were accompanying 
that procession, had to leave that procession 
in protest against    those    slogans    that   i 
were raised on that very day.  Again,   I 
Madam,  I want to draw your attention to the 
fact that on the 24th of January, a call for 
hartal was given by    the All-Assam    
Chhatra    Sangh, dominated   by      Congress      
students. (Interruption)    Definitely   it was 
dominated  by Congress students.   What I 
want to highlight here is that this hartal was 
observed   not   because of anything else.   It  
was observed on'y to protest against that 
famous speech of the Prime Minister at Jorhat 
whe>-e she said that the Asoka Mehta Com-
mittee Report on the    reorganisation of 
Assam could not be the basis for the 
reorganisation    of the State    because  the   
hill     leaders    were     not agreeable to that.    
I think the Prime Minister had said 
somewhere that she had not said that.   Well, 
if the Prime Minister had not  said  that, I 
would have   been   very   happy.     But   
when the  cal for hartal    was   given,  two 
days' preparation was also made, the Prime 
Minister could have contradicted that 
statement or the Assam Government  could    
have    done that  on behalf of the Prime 
Minister.   It could have  been  contradicted   
through   the press that the Prime Minister of 
the country had not said that at Jorhat. But no   
contradiction   was made.   So the harta1 was 
organised.      On    that day it was a peaceful 
hartal but certain  violent   acts  took  place  
on  the 24th.    The  January     26  
celebrations were boycotted.   Madam, I 
would not like  to   go  into  the  details  of  
what happened  on  the  Republic  Day,  but 
the National Flag was torn to pieces in the 
police station and a group of students in a 
certain conveyance went to    the    Congress    
office    and pulled down  the National Flag.    
They went to the PSP office and pulled down 
the National   Flag.    Then   they  went   to 
Hie CPI office of Shri Bhupesh Gupta .and  
they pulled  down  the National 

Flag.    Also a cycle factory was looted 'and 
burnt on that    famous day. Certain young 
men have been arrested in that connection.   
One of the gentlemen who belongs officially 
to the CPI (M) and associated with the 
Naxalbari group has definitely made a 
statement before the police that 10 or 12 
gentlemen. .  (Interruption).   I do not know 
whether he has  given the names or not.     
That   gentleman   has   admitted that he  
belongs  to the  CPI(M)   and is   associated     
with     the   Naxalbari group.    He has also 
hinted about 10 or 11 names of the persons 
who were associated with him at the time 
when that cycle factory    was    being burnt 
and looked.    The cycle factory owner has 
also given a statement before the police     that  
when     these  gentlemen were  looting and 
burning that cycle factory    the slogan was    
"Assam for Assamese"     and  also     "Lachit  
Sena Zindabad".    Then     another     s'ogan 
was  also being raised "From Naxalbari to 
Titabar".    Now, Madam, you know  where  
Titabar  is  situated.    It is on the north-
eastern side of Assam. That   means  this  
movement   that   is going on will spread from 
Naxalbari to Titabar and it will not remain 
confined to Naxalbari alone.    These are few 
of the reasons for which I say— and   also  
because  of  the   discussions that had taken 
place    by those two gentlemen  of  the     
Naxalbari  group about   La-hit   Sena—it   is   
absolutely clear  that  they  had   a  hand  in  
this entire affair.    They wanted to    take 
advantage  of the disontent  and the feelings  
of  the youngmen  of Assam. So such  a 
situation has taken place. The Assam   
Government   has a great share in this 
mischief.   I do not go to the other aspects like 
the Lachit Sena distributing those leaflets 
everywhere earlier but even on 13th when 
these slogans were raised and on 24th when 
all those  slogans    were    raised and also  
violent     action took  place,  the Chaliha  
Ministry   did   not   take   any action.    I  
want  to     know  from  the Minister here,  
whether,  although for the last one month all 
these leaflets were  being printed,     they  
have till now   anywhere   confiscated   a  
single 
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those have been printed?    Can the  Minister  
tell who are those  persons who     have     been 
arrested till now? Not a single person has been 
arrested for pasting posters on the walls or for 
distributing them? I am sorry to say—and the    
Assam papers have quoted these—that on the 
very day when Gauhati was burning, at 8.15  
in the morning,  the    Assam Chief Minister 
who was hoisting the flag in  Sibsagar is 
reported to have said:   "We will fight to the    
finish. ." perhaps   he   did  not  say   
'conspiracy' but I still remember the very 
words he used—"We will fight to the finish' 
this attempt of the Central Government   to   
impose  a   federal   structure on us".   I want 
to    say    that this is the condition in which 
this conflagration took place.   The discontent 
that was  there  was  sufficiently  exploited by 
the Lachit  Sena  and  the Naxal-bari  group  
and in  this  entire  affair the Assam    
Government     was mute and did not take any 
action till now against   the  Lachit   Sena  
people.    It is also reported in a Bengal weekly 
that when Mr.  Chaliha    was    asked 'Why  
have  you     not     taken  action against the  
Lachit  Sena people?'  he is reported to have 
said: "Many important  persons  are  involved 
in  it.    If I want to take action  against them, 
then I do not know what will happen to  the  
State  and  what  will  happen to me.'    When 
one of our gentlemen met  Mr.  Cha'iha  and  
said:    'In  the very  night,   not  a  single house  
was searched on 26th even after the curfew' 
one of the officers said—I think the Deputy 
Commissioner—''I ordered some  of the  
houses  to  be  searched but the police did    
not    accept    my order'.    This was said by 
one of the important  officers  of Gauhati 
before one of my friends.    That  is  why  I say 
that not only there was discontent in Assam 
which was taken advantage of by  the  Lachit  
Sena  and also by the Naxalbari group of com-
munists but in this entire affair, the 
Government of Assam is a party not only by 
their negligence but by whip- 

ping up certain feelings among the people of 
Assam. When I say the people of Assam, 
that includes the Bengalis, Marwaris and 
others who have made Assam their home. 
When I say Assamese, I do not mean only 
those who originally belonged to Assam but 
all those who are residents of Assam. 

In this connection I want to draw the 
attention  of the House  to  other facts because 
throughout this period, not only  the  
administrative     machinery completely 
collapsed but I dare say that the Assam 
Government also-showed    a    lukewarm    
attitude, for whatever may be the reason,  
about the     entire     episode.    If they  had 
taken at least some preventive measures   on   
13th January  and brought lo  book certain  
criminals who were leading the agitations, I 
am sure the unhappy  episode  that took  place  
on 26th January would not have occurred  in  
that   State.    That  is   why   I say that till now 
though the Union-Home Minister last time 
passed  the Unlawful  Activities Act, I     want 
to ask   him   whether,   when  the  Lachit Sena  
is   an   underground  movement, it is not  an 
open    movement, when they were 
distributing leaflets for the-last  2    months, 
when     they  are in league  with   the   
Naxalbari  communists, when they   are   
raising slogans in  the treets of Gauhati     and 
were pasting posters everywhere in Assam, 
what action was taken against them? Have  
they found   out  till  now  who are the leaders 
of the Lachit Sena?' Have   they   tried     to  
confiscate   the printing  presses     where  the  
posters and leaflets  are printed?    I want to 
know from the Home Minister, when, he 
admitted in the other House that the 
administration     there has  completely   
collapsed,     what   action  has the   
Government   taken   against   that Min'strv.    
When to-day morning the Coimbatore affairs 
was discussed, certain    Members    were   
rightly    much agitated.   I    do    not    say 
that they should not be agitated but when the^ 
question of  a  non-Congress Government    
comes,    they     are    so    much: 
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agitated. May I know from the Home 
Minister what action he has taken when he 
himself admitted that the administration 
there had collapsed. I want to say that there 
were so many police personnel there because 
of the Republic Day celebrations. May I 
know from the Minister whether all those 
persons were arrested that day—the persons 
who were the ring leaders? May I ask 
whether that very night after the curfew was 
clamped, all the houses were searched where 
the stolen properties were lying till then? 
May I ask from, him what help has been 
rendered to those persons who have suffered 
in that affair? 

When a house is burning in Gauhati or 
when the railway station is burning there, it 
is not a property that is burning, it is a part 
of the Swaraj, a part of the nationalism of 
India that is being burnt there. Naturally we 
ought to be all perturbed. It is not a question 
of parties, it is a question of the entire nation 
and I want to know from the Minister 
whether for the integrity and unity of this 
country, which we all want to uphold, they 
have taken any effective steps when these 
voices of fissiparous tendencies were raised 
in Gauhati and may I know the action taken 
in the matter? 

SHRI M. P. BHARGAVA '(Uttar 
Pradesh): Madam, I hope the whole House 
will agree with me in condemning the ugly 
incidents which have happened in Gauhati. 

SHRI DAHYABHAI V. PATEL 
(Gujarat): What about things after that? 

SHRI M. P. BHARGAVA: If I may say 
so, the incidents are not solitary ones that 
have taken place. We have to look to the 
history of Assam if we want to understand 
the background of these disturbances. As the 
House is aware, Assam had under its 
jurisdiction Nagaland, it had Manipur, it had 
Tripura, it had 

NEFA and it had other hill areas also. It was 
a big composite State but what has been the 
tendency thereafter? Bit by bit territories 
have been going out. Tripura was formed into 
a Union Territory. Manipur was formed into 
a Union Territory. Nagaland was taken out of 
the jurisdiction of Assam and the NEFA area 
had to be taken out of Assam's jurisdiction. 
The House is also aware that some years 
back there was^ the language trouble in 
Assam. 

SHRI P. N. SAPRU (Uttar Pradesh): May 
I intervene to say that as a point of fact, 
Tripura and Manipur were never parts of 
Assam. They were called States subject to 
the paramountcy of the British Crown. 

SHRI M. P. BHARGAVA: I am thankful 
to Mr. Sapru for correcting me. What I meant 
was they were administered by one Governor 
and it was a single Governor who adminis-
tered the whole area at that time. Then, as the 
House is aware, some years back there was 
trouble over the language between the 
Bengalis and the Assamese—those were 
again very ugly incidents and some sort of a 
solution was found at that time. Thereafter, 
the House will again remember that there was 
a set pattern of incidents in Now-gong about 
two years back. There the pattern was that a 
certain community was marked and all the 
attack was on that community. And what do 
we find in the incidents on the Republic Day? 
There again a certain community was singled 
out, and they were the victims of all the 
hooliganism which happened on that day. 
Now what is it at the back of these incidents 
and whether the Government of Assam took 
necessary steps to meet the situation is the 
question. Leaflets were coming out not only 
on the 24th January but before that also that 
such and such things would happen. Whether 
any notice was taken by the Assam 
Government to meet the situation or 
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to find out who were the people who were 
issuing these leaflets giving warning of 
certain incidents which would happen is the 
question. An effigy of our respected Prime 
Minister was burnt and inflammatory 
speeches were made. May I "know this from 
the Home Ministry of the Government of 
India? When did they come to know about 
this incident? What steps did they take to find 
out from the Assam Government what they 
had done in this ;.er? 

Now I can quite understand the anxiety of 
the Assam Government as far as the 
reorganisation of some hill areas and plain 
areas is concerned. But that does not mean 
that the State authority becomes a passive 
onlooker to the incidents which have been 
happening. 

Now take the incidents of the 36th 
January. What were the police doing? Did 
they take any steps to meet the situation? I 
am afraid the reply jjs in the negative. The 
Minister of Revenue of the Assam 
Government was there. Did he not have 
enough information of the incidents, or did 
not the incidents Of the early morning show 
what was the shape of things to come? And 
if that was the position, what steps were 
taken to see that the ugly incidents did not 
take place? 

Now this is a tendency that has to be 
taken serious note of. It is not only in Assam 
that we find these tendencies. These 
separatist tendencies are visible elsewhere 
also. The incidents of Assam on the 26th 
January involve loss of property worth 
crores and crores of rupees. Whose property 
is it? Is it the property of individuals? It is 
the property of the nation which was 
destroyed. I want to pose this question. 
Whatever is the property loss, does it not 
add to the difficulties of the country? Does it 
not mean that it is a national loss? Does it 
not put our progress in the reverse gear? 

[THE VICE-CHAIRMAN     (SHRI    AKBAR ALI 
KHAN)  in the Chair.] What is all this 
happening, and what is  the    Government     
doing,  at    the Centre and in the State? What 
positive  steps  are we  taking to    infuse again  
confidence     in that particular community     
which was  affected    in the riots at Gauhati?    
I have heard quite a number of things and it 
has been  distressing  me,  the  way    pre-
parations were    made for the    incidents  on  
the   26th January.      From the 24th January 
onwards there were brisk preparations for it.   
The houses of Assamese and non-Assamese 
were marked.     The  houses  were  marked 
where non-Assamese residents    were 
occupying      Assamese-owned   houses, and    
everything   was    marked    in    a set pattern.   
What were the Government officials doing 
there when    all this was happening below 
their nose, just    in    the    knowledge    of    
these officials? 

SHRI P. N. SAPRU: On a point of 
information. Was it done on a territorial basis, 
or on a communal basis? What I want to 
know is whether it was Assamese versus non-
Assamese, or whether it was Assamese 
Hindus, Assamese Muslims versus others. 

SHRI M. P. BHARGAVA: Well, I am sure 
Mr, Sapru himself has some information on 
this point, but I can tell the House that it was 
all an attack on non-Assamese living in 
Assam in Gauhati. And what is that 
communityffl It is that community which 
controls most of the business in that area, in 
Gauhati, and the affected area in that Gauhati 
is called the Fancy Bazar, the main shopping 
centre of Gauhati; most of the business there 
is in the hands of those people. Some people 
who call themselves great socialists argue and 
give justification saying that this has all 
happened because that particular community 
has been exploiting the Assamese from times 
immemorial. Now these people have settled in 
Assam since a very    very 
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long time; some of them have been there for a 
hundred years and over, and they have 
acclimatized themselves to the conditions of 
that place. Now even if we grant that there 
was exploitation by these people of the 
Assamese living there, does it mean that the 
Assamese were justified in doing what all they 
did? Is India one, or India is various States? 
We have to decide once for all that question. 
India is one, and if India is one, every citizen 
has a right by choice to remain wherever he 
wants to live. There should be no ban on 
anybody to live anywhere. The Assamese 
have as much the right to live in Delhi or in 
U.P. as e U.P. walla has the right to live in 
Assam. Similarly, everyone of the peoples of 
the various States has the right to stay 
wherever he likes. That is the crux of the 
problem and we have to tackle that problem. 
Conditions have to be created where these 
State barriers vanish, where these regional 
considerations vanish. Have we not played 
with the lives and properties of our citizens for 
long? Have we not destroyed our national 
wealth for long? How long is this madness 
going to last? How long, is this madness going 
to obscure the fair name of this country? Some 
stop has to be put somewhere, and the sooner 
this stop is put, the better it will be in the 
interests of this country   and  all  the  states. 

This  is  a  problem  which re- 
4   P.M. . 

quires the attention of all the 
right-thinking people      in       this 

country. We must evolve some sort of a 
national conscience to meet the situation and 
conditions have to be created where the people 
of different communities,' the people of 
different States can live peacefully and 
smoothly in all parts of this country, irrespec-
tive of what they consider themselves to be. 
And this is a problem in which my appeal 
would be to all the leaders of all the Opposi-
tion Parties also to consider   it from 

the national point of view.    Nobody should 
add fuel to the fire. 

AN    HON.     MEMBER:    Only    to 
Opposition Parties? 

SHRI M. P. BHARGAVA: I have already 
said about the Government. And about the 
Nowgong incidents an enquiry was ordered 
and the report of that Enquiry Commission 
has been received. I would like the Home 
Minister to tell us what are the main 
recommendations of that report. They should 
also tell us why that report is not being placed 
on the Table of the House and why it is not 
made known to everybody. What that 
Commission had to say about the Nowgong 
riots. I say this because the pattern of things is 
the same in both the places and if we knew the 
recommendations of that Commission and if 
the Government of India and the Government 
of Assam had implemented the 
recommendations of that Commission, I have 
no doubt that things would not have taken the 
ugly shape that they took on the 26th January, 
1968. A stitch in time saves nine, is an old 
saying. Even now it is not too late. The 
problems havt to be tackled seriously and in a 
businesslike manner. It is no time when 
problems could be allowed to drift. If we do 
not tackle the problems in time and if the 
leadership of the country does not rise to the 
occasion, then I would give a warning today, 
that our democracy would be in danger. And 
for that posterity will never, never forgive any 
of the Members of Parliament or anybody 
who has anything to say in the policymaking 
in this country.    Thank you. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Mr. Vice-
Chainman, I am grateful to you for calling me 
early because I have to leave on some other 
work. Naturally I would like to participate in 
this debate as anybody would like, coming 
from West Bengal, and also in order to set the 
records straight at least, if not for anything 
else. Here I was somewhat amazed by the 
speech of    my    hon.    friend    Shri     
Banka 
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[Shri Bhupesh Gupta.] Behary Das.    He 
imported    into his theme narrow partition 
politics.   1 do not    know why    he did it.    I 
have great regard for him and his  Party. Alter  
hearing   his   speech  I  went  to meet the Lok 
Sabha Members  from Assam belonging to our 
Party and I made enquiries  as to what was the 
situation there, apart from    what I already  
know.     I  may    straightway tell you that it is 
just   scaremonger-ing and raising bogeys when 
people say that Naxalbari group was respon-
sible.    There  is really no Naxalbari group   at   
all-.    (Interruption)   Please let me finish. It is 
well known that the so-called  Naxalbari    
group   violently differs    from us    on many    
matters. We have strong criticisms against the 
so-called Naxalbari    group.    But    it will be 
wholly unfair on my part not to protest against 
this kind of statements  when    you discuss the    
grim situation,   or  the  tragic   situation  or 
diabolical    situation    whatever     you may 
call it—that was there in Gauhati on the 
Republic Day and the day after.   It    is    
interesting    that while blaming   among   
others  the  so-called Naxalbari   group  Mr.   
Banka  Behary Das made a   statement   in 
which he said that Mr. Chaliha would not act in  
this  matter   because  Mr.   Chaliha felt that he 
would not last, nor his Government would    
last, if he took strong action.      In fact,   I  
have got what  he   said.    He  is     reported   to 
have said that when the request was made  that 
there  should  be  an    enquiry into the 
incidents, he said that if     he    did    any     
such    thing     he would be losing his gaddi, 
that is to say, the   Ministry.    Well, am   I   to 
understand that the Naxalbari group has 
become suddenly so powerful in Assam? 

SHRI BANKA BEHARY DAS: The 
Lachit Sena. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Has the 
Naxalbari group become so powerful all of a 
sudden that if Mr. Chaliha held an enquiry 
into the happenings in Gauhati he would lose 
his Chief 

Ministership and the Ministry would go?    
Nobody,    not even my    P.S.P. friends,   I   
think,   would .ever  make the    suggestion that    
the    Naxalbari group—it does not exists in 
that part anyway—has    become    suddenly    
so powerful as to threaten Mr. Chaliha with the 
'oss of his power or of his Government? The 
fact    remains that there   were   influential  
people,   chauvinistic    and    reactionary    
elements who wanted to whip up trouble and 
some of them are well entrenched in very high     
positions in    the    ruling class and perhaps 
also in the Administer. That is the crux of the 
matter. That is why Mr. Chaliha hositate to 
even promise that he would look into or order 
an enquiry into the Gauhati  happenings.  Of  
course,   I   know Mr. Hem Barua brought in 
Mao Tse-tung,  China, Pakistan and everthing. 
That the surest way of confusing the issue.    
That is the surest way of allowing  the  real  
miscreants and criminals to  get  away  without  
having to  face 'any  enquiry  or punishment or   
retribution.    Let  us  not  2o  into that  kind  of 
politics now.    We  can leave that for other 
occasions. So the trouble here was, as I hare 
already stated, we  have  certain chauvinistic 
elements in those areas who aro always on the 
look-out for creating certain    incidents    of    
that    kind.    And this has its own background 
also. As far  as our party  is  concerned,  well, 
our Party Office, as you know, was attacked   
on  the  Republic   Day.   The State flag which 
had been or  which was being hoisted  was  
pulled  down and when the Communist party 
members,  when the comrades  wanted  to 
resist it they were assaulted by the hooligans  
who went there.    Do you think any leftist went 
there? Do you think that any Communist of the 
Naxalbari group or CPI   (M) went there to 
assault us in this manner? I think Mr. Banka 
Behary Das is an intelligent man and he would 
not venture to make such a preposterous 
suggestion that the Naxalbari people  combined 
with, others in order to attac-k: the  Communist 
Party  on that   occasion in this manner. 
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SHRI BANKA BEHARY DAS: I do | no 
want to interrupt Mr. Bhupesh Gupta, but may 
I for his benefit give two instances: I can say 
here that two Naxalbari leaders, went to Mr. 
Kesab Mahanta who was a CPI member 
formerly and who had lately joined the PSP 
and they discussed the connection between 
Naxalbari and the Lachit Sena. Another thing I 
can say for the benefit and information of my 
hon. friend Mr. Gupta. One Mr. Kabi Barman 
who was arrested for looting the cycle factory 
belongs to the CPI (L). 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: It is for the 
CPI(M) to say. I do not keep records of the 
CPI(M) members. It is for them to say. I may 
tell you even so, the CPI(M) and the CPI are 
the two parties who went out in the streets 
and faced the hooligans and faced all their 
vandalism and violence. Therefore it would 
be wrong, it would be uncharitable for Mr. 
Banka Behary Das to make a suggestion of 
this kind. Well, a particular person has been 
named, let it be sent to the C.P.(M) 
headquarters and tomorrow you will know 
whether there is such a member. I do not 
think any C. P. (M) member of Assam is 
present either in this House or in the other 
House but I believe Mr. Robin Chatterjee 
who is a member of the C. P.(M) can find 
out. 

SHRI BANKA BEHARY DAS: He is not 
of the Naxalbari group. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Our PSP 
friends are sometimes a little obsessed by  
the  Communists. 

SHRI BANKA BEHARY DAS:  But 
you should know . . . 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Not you. You 
always differentiate between the C.P.I. (M) 
and C. P. I. But we are all Communists. We 
have serious differences but I do not think in 
such matters you should bring in this C. 
P.(M) thing. Anyhow it is for them to say. 
For our part I have knowledge of it; 

I have met our comrades there and I may 
inform you that despite all our differences on 
many matters on those two days the C. P. I. 
and the C. P. (M) came out in the street. My 
information is that the n'ational flag was not 
hauled down from the Congress Office; it is 
a good thing it was not done. My information 
is it was also not hauled down from the PSP 
office and if that is so, it is also ta good 
thing. Mr. Vice-Chairman, we have been 
subjected to attack. 

And here I should like to point out another 
aspect of the matter which is the real aspect. 
The Assam Intelligence Service completely 
failed in this matter as always happens with 
it. During the language riots a'so the Assam 
Intelligence Service completely failed at that 
time. Now, the Central Intelligence Service 
also which has got & big outfit in Assam, 
failed this time to act in time or did not show 
any awareness of what was coming; yet the 
people were talking about it. So it remains to 
be explained why the Intelligence Services 
both of the Centre and of the State failed 
once again in this manner. You will 
remember some years ago they were 
subjected to very strong criticism. It is not 
enough for Mr. Chagla to pass the buck   .   .   
. 

THE      VICE-CHAIRMAN        (SHRI 
AKBAR ALI KHAN):   Mr. Chagla? 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I am sorry; Mr. 
Ch'avan. It is not enough for Mr. Chavan to 
pass the buck to the Assam Government. The 
Assam Government is certainly answerable 
but what about the Central Government? The 
Central Government maintains a large 
number of people there, especially in the 
Intelligence Service. What were they doing? I 
should like to know. And there is no explana-
tion forthcoming from them. Not only that; 
when our office was attacked the matter was 
brought to the notice of ihe police; the po'ice 
station was nearby but nothing Was done. 
The raiders came to our  office  in  a 
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private motor car No. ASK 211 and the police 
was informed about the car and the number 
and about the empire modus operandi of the 
hooligans who attacked our office but nothing 
was done against them. Therefore it is not 
merely a question of dereliction of duty; it was 
something worse. It does appear that there was 
some planning behind it and that one of the 
objects was to attack the Communist Party and 
other elements who go with the leftist 
movement in order to disrupt and discorganise 
the leftist movement. As you know, even in 
matters of State reorganisation we have our 
approach and view which certainly is not liked 
by thte extremist elements in Assam. Perhaps 
they thought that there was an opportunity to 
wreak vengeance against us- and that is why 
they attacked our party office but the State 
Government did not) do anything. As you 
know, even when it was announced that on the 
Republic Day there would be boycotting and 
demonstration, no preventive action was taken 
by the Government of Assam. Though the 
Assam Government knew very well that on the 
26th trouble would start they took no 
precaution whatsoever. Even when the ground 
where the Republic Day functions were to be 
held was surrounded by certain people no steps 
were taken against them. Therefore it seems 
that the Assam Government or some elements 
high up in the Government were very much in-
volved in it. When the report about rioting and 
arson in the Fancy Bazar area was 
communicated to the police they did not act; 
on the contrary it has been alleged that 
attempts by people to resist the rioting were 
foiled by the intervention of the police. In the 
Fancy Bazar area the people went out to resist 
the rioters but the police intervened in favour 
of the hooligans and stopped the citizens from 
protecting their property and from defending 
themselves against attacks by hooligans. This 
needs to be explained.   It is said that 700 per- 

I sons have been arrested but the majority of 
them are for violations of the curfew 
restrictions. But wkat about the organised 
hooligans who came in motor vehicles and 
who used modern methods of sabotage and 
destruction? As has been said by my hon. 
friend, Mr. Banka Behary Das, they used a 
kind of chemical in order to destroy property 
or open Godrej almirahi and so on. What has 
happened to them? No raids took place, no 
effective raids took place to catch them. Here 
again there is every reasons to suspect that 
things have been preplanned and the 
Government and the local authorities were 
certainly conniving at what has happened in 
Assam.    (Time  bell-rings). 

Sir, you have rung the bell; f do not wish to 
say much. But here is a case for a thorough 
enquiry, a high-powered enquiry into the 
entire developments there on the 26th and 27th 
because there is prima facie a case that 
somebody had been guilty not only of 
dereliction of duty but of something more; 
there is prima facie a case to show that these 
hooligans who had (been well organised had 
the backing of people in high positions and 
certainly there is prima facie a case that the 
police behaved in a most strange manner in 
not acting in time or acting much too late 
when the holligans had disappeared. These are 
matters to be looked into. There is an attempt 
on the part of some people to brine' in 
Pakistan, China and other things because 
perhaps they think that it is convenient here to 
do so but then when it comes to Tamil Nad 
and other places they do not bring in such 
things. I say, don't try to understand the Assam 
situation by paying any heed to this kind of 
false slogans or alarmist slogans on the part of 
some people. There is complete evidence that 
there are certain people, chauvinistic and 
reactionary, who want to exploit the 
discontent, the legitimate discontent oi*the 
people of Assam, in order to disrupt and 
divide 
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them so that they can carry on. They are 
interested in really creating difficulties for all 
those who want, for example, a sensible or 
reasonable solution of the problem of 
reorganisation of Assam. These are the people 
who want the Assam's rising movement 
destroyed or disrupted by this kind of 
provocations. We should always seek out the 
agent provateurs. Therefore my case is clearly 
this. Once again we have seen in a different 
context, in a different way, a re-enactment of 
the old drama of reaction let loose in Assam, 
exploiting the discontent of the people, 
misdirecting and misguiding momentarily 
some sections of the youth and carrying on 
depradationi in the manner in which they did. 
As far as the Communist Party is concerned, I 
may tell you that we will not only voice our 
protest against it but I think the Communist 
Party of Assam should get ready to flight 
them out. If hooligans come they should be 
met; if they use violence counter-violence has 
to be used. 1 have no doubt about it. I do not 
mince matters because these hooligans were 
well organised and they came with arms and 
so on. If the Government does not protect the 
life and property of the citizens and people of 
Assam, what are the people to do? Therefore, 
I would call upon all the left, democractic and 
like-minded people in Assam to organise 
themselves, so that these manacing disruptive 
activities and hooliganism on the part of the 
organised section —some well-organised 
people who had the backing of some people 
high up- are met adequately. That is what I 
say. 

As far as Mr. Chaliha is concerned, may I 
make a suggestion? Now, it Is a Congress 
Government. Where is your report?    There 
was a lot of 
noise about Naxalbari. There was a lot of 
noise about Kerala. There was a lot of noise 
about what was happening in Durgapur when 
it was a non-Congress Ministry.    You make 
a 

lot of noise aibout what is happening in the 
South. Call Mr. Chaliha nere and ask him to 
explain before Parliament and the nation, 
through an appropriate report, as to what was 
the reason for these disturbances. Wnat was 
the reason for the highly disruptive and 
explosive disturbance that not only marred the 
Republic Day celebrations? It was something 
infinitely worse. Therefore- I think that here is 
a case for calling upon Mr. Chaliha to explain. 
I think the Government can also issue certain 
direction under the re-levent provisions of the 
Constitution to the State Government to take 
certain action in consultation with all the 
political parties there, who are sincerely 
interested in maintaining peace and tranquility 
in Assam and ayhow interested in avoiding 
this kind of situation arising there. I should 
like such steps being taken. 

Finally, 1 think it necessary for Members of 
Parliament also to visit Assam and make an 
on-the-spot study of what happened there, and 
talk to the people there. At the time of the 
earlier riots or disturbances, as you know, a 
Committee of the two Houses of 
Parliament—Mr. Raj Bahadur Gour was a 
member of the Committee from our Party 
from this House—went to Assam, made 
enquiries and submitted a report to Parlia-
ment. I think we should also, in this case, take 
a similar step. I think a small delegation of 
Members of Parliament should go there, in 
nrder that they can study and submit a report 
to Parliament. The real causes will be found 
out by that very effort. Only one thing more I 
wish to say. This is very essential. Again, I 
would say that hon. Members should take this 
a little seriously. I have not digressed into the 
lar^fer aspects of the problem. Here I have 
only dealt with those t\ro incidents, serious, 
no doubt, but isolated incidents. But it would 
be a mistake to thtnS that they had no 
connection wiffi what had been happening in 
Assam all these months and years.    There- 
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proper investigation and enquiry is called for 
in an appropriate manner. If Mr. Chalina does 
not care to order a probe into the happenings 
on the Republic Day and the day after, I think 
the Central Government can consult its legal 
experts and find out what direction to give for 
holding such an urgent enquiry into what is 
happening. 1 do hope that the Assamese 
people will maintain their calm and quietness. 
They are excellent pleople. They have got 
their grievances, which we shall certainly try 
to meet by all means, but these disruptive, 
hooligan elements, which want to play with 
the feelings of the people, have got to be 
isolated and brought to a finish. 

SHRI P. CHETIA (Assam): Mr. Vice-
Chairman, I have heard the speeches of my 
predecessors, Mr. Ehupesh Gupta, Mr. Banlca 
Behnry Das and from our party, Mr. 
Bhargava. At the very outset I am sorry to say 
that Mr. Gupta has implicated the 
Government of Assam in these disturbances. 
It is a fact that there were tragic and 
unfortunate happenings in Gauhati, which we 
all condemn. We think that the disturbances 
have humiliated us. All sections of the people 
in Assam condemn it, including the students. 
It is a fact that so far as the local 
administration is concerned, they completely 
failed on that day. I do not know for what 
reason. Timely steps could not (be taken by 
the local administration. Of course, it does not 
redound to the credit of the Assam 
Government. So far a? giving protection to 
life and propel ty from such hooligans is 
concernpd, it is the primary responsibility of 
the Government. The entire people of Assam 
condemn it and they are critical of the action 
of the local officials in Gauhati. ' 

In Ibis connection I would like to say it for 
the information of this august House that this 
matter has been referred to a high power 
Commission of inquiry under Justice Shri P. 
K. Sen, who is a Judge of the High Court 

of Assam and Nagaland, and the Commission 
has been asked to go into every detailed 
aspect of the disturbances, including the part 
played by the local officials. Those, who are 
found negligent in their duty will be 
adequately dealt with according to law. 

As far as the disturbance is concerned, how 
did it happen? There was some reference 
made by Mr. Bhargava that at only one place 
it took place, viz., Fancy Bazar. That is not 
the case. The disturbances spread 
simultaneously at four places, and in a place 
at a distance of 18 miles from Gauhati. There 
were three other places apart from Fancy 
Bazar, which are just on the outskirts of 
Gauhati city. In all these places, except Fancy 
Bazar, it seems that the disturbance was more 
or less organised. I quite agree with the 
accusations levelled against the Naxalbari 
group of communists, as has been done by 
Mr. Banka Behary Das. We have got evidence 
of it. As he has already said, one important 
member of the Left Communist Party has 
been arrested. Shri Kabi Burman has been 
arrested and he has named eleven other 
persons who are involved in this.     Then, 
again... . 
SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA; Arrest does not 
mean anything, because during the Indo-Pak 
conflict several Muslim members of our Party 
were arrested. You know that very well. SHRI 
P. CHETIA: As far as the Lachit Sena is 
concerned, it is not like the Shiv Sena. 
Nobody knows who is its president or 
secretary. In this connection the Governor 
also mentioned that "certain individuals and 
groups in the name of Lachit Sena" have been 
indulging in publishing posters and leaflets 
containing threats against the non-Assamese 
and carrying on anti-national and anti-Indian 
and secessionist activities which are 
prejudicial to the integrity of the, nation This 
was the statement by the Governor    in    his 
inaugural ,   address in the Assembly on the 
20th   February: 
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"Government has noted these with 
dismay and concern and is determined to 
suppress these elements and maintain law 
and order in the State." 
So far as the Lachit Sena is concerned, as 

far as our information goes, it is an 
organisation of a handful of pseudo-
businessmen, who have just entered into the 
business field and it has no backing of the 
people of Assam. 

SHRI SUNDAR SINGH BHAN-DARI 
(Rajasthan); Has that Ibeen located? 

SHRI P. CHETIA: Of course, at the very 
beginning it was circulating and publishing 
some objectionable leaflets containing threats, 
but possi- i bly the Government did not take it 
j aeriousiy. I quite agree with Mr. Bhupesh 
Gupta that so far as the, Intelligence 
departments of the Assam Government and 
the Central Government are concerned, they 
completely failed in this regard. If (here had 
been prior information about these 
disturbances, I do not think there would have 
been disturbances of the kind that we ex-
perienced in Gauhati on the 26th January, viz., 
the Republic Day. Then the question arises as 
to what is the origin of the disturbance. On the 
23rd January all the students of the State 
convened a meeting to organise a hartal. On 
the 24th there was a hartal. It was a peaceful 
hartal except for certain small incidents. The 
students of Gauhati alone organised a meeting 
on the 25th January to boycott the Republic 
Day. It was a mistake on their part because 
Mth January, Republic Day, is a mttional day 
and they should not buve done it, and this 
boycott had prevented many of the citizens 
from participating in the National Day. Vo that 
extent it is anti-national. 

So far as the students are concerned, I 
quite appreciate their feeling because they 
organised this hartal (inly to lodge a protest, 
to give vent to their feeling of discontent 
against 

the Central Government, and more 
paricularly against the Prime Minister, 
because the Prime Minister has made a 
statement that the Mehta Committee cannot 
provide a solution to the hill problem as the 
hill leaders did not participate in it. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I would like 
the hon. Member to tell us what the Congress 
was doing. Did they go to the students to 
persuade them against that course? 

(Interruption) 
SHRI P. CHETIA: The meeting was held 

on the 25th of January. On the 26th they 
launched the boycott. There was no time on 
the 25th of January for the Congress to ap-
proach the students. People could come to 
know about this boycott only on the 26th 
morning. Then again they took out a small 
procession with the result that under the 
coverage of this boycott and procession the 
anti-social elements took part in it They 
looted property; they indulged in destruction 
of property. As a matter of fact, in this matter 
of looting property and destroying property, 
in respect of setting fire, there was no 
distinction made between Assamese and non-
Assamese, because as many as 29 Assamese 
had been affected in these disturbances. 
Comparatively the Marwaris, the businessmen 
of Rajasthan, happened to be in the majority 
there, so the affected number among them is 
higher. But as a matter of fact there was no 
discrimination between Hindus and Muslims 
or between Assamese and non-Assamese. 

Mr. Bhupesh Gupta has said that there 
should be a Parliamentary Inquiry 
Committee. As a matter of fact many 
Members of Parliament went there soon after 
the disturbance took place. From the 
Congress side Shri P. D. Himatsingka went 
there; from Jan Sangh Shri Balraj Madhok; 
from Swatantra Party one member went 
there. So, they visited the p^ace immediately 
after the disturbances took place. The Jan 
Sangh Member,   Shri     Balraj   Madhok,  
has 



 

[Shri P. Chetia.] said in this    
connection,    I   want   to quote him: 

"The local Assamese people had given 
food and shelter to the affected people in 
various localities and it was wrong to 
give the disturbances an Assamese non-
Assamese colour." 

He went there immediately after the 
disturbance took place and visited every 
place. I also visited the place before I came 
to Delhi and I found that in some places, 
not in Fancy Bazar as Mr. Bhargava said 
but at Bejoynagar, Athgaon, Fatasil and 
Tiwari Market, at these places the 
disturbance seems to have been preplanned. 
Except Bijoynagar, they are about two or 
three miles from the Fancy Bazar and lying 
on the outskirts of Gauhati City. In these 
places the hooligans had brought the 
necessary implements to break open iron 
safes, and they looted the property from 
those iron safes. At Fatasil one spirit bottle 
attached to bulbs was found. In connection 
with the cycle factory disturbance on® 
Kavi Barman, a Left Communist, had been 
arrested. He mentioned eleven or tweleve 
members of his party who took part in this 
disturbance. There was an Assamese 
manager in the cycle factory who was in 
charge ot designing. He was about to be 
killed and his property worth several thou-
sands was looted and burnt. It is a fact that 
there were some leftist elements who took 
part in this disturbance, as stated by Shri 
Banka Behary Das. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Who are the 
leftist elements? 

SHRI P. CHETIA: Not your party. I 
quite appreciate so far as your party is 
concerned, but these people belonged to 
the Marxist Party. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
AKBAR ALI KHAN): Your time is over. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Who are the 
leftist elements? 

SHRI P. CHETIA: So far as your party is 
concerned, they were free trom it. It was a fact 
that the flags hoisted in the offices of the 
Coogitess, the P.S.P. and Right Communist 
Party were pulled down. 

So far as the involvement and backing of 
people in high positions is concerned, that is 
absolutely incorrect, ay no stretch of 
imagination it can be proved that there were 
some high persons behind this. It is most 
unjust and uncharitable on the part of the hon. 
Member to say such things. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Some people 
were there behind. 

SHRI P. CHETIA: As for arrests, do you 
know what hapened? For specific offences 
more than 500 people were arrested, and 
looted properties were found in their 
possession, and of them more than 100 were 
non-Assamese people hailing from Bihar, 
Bengal, etc. It is incorrect to say that there is 
only one section of people involved in it. It is 
aboslutely incorrect. There were Biharis, there 
were. Assamese, Bengalis, Hindus, Muslims, 
all. More than 500 people were arrested for 
specific offences. (Interruption). The arrests 
were made for specific offences. Looted 
properties were recovered from those persons 
who were arrested. They were Bengalis, 
Biharis, there were Hindus, all. There is no 
distinction. There is no question that it was 
one type only and others are excluded. All 
people are arrested in that connection. So far 
as the action of the Government is concerned, 
it was the duty of the Government to take note 
of the happenings beforehand. Possibly 
Government had thought that there would be 
no disturbance because the hartal on the 24th 
was a complete success, it was a peaceful 
hartal and there was no incident- 

AN HON. MEMBER; Is protected areas 
people entered. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRr AKBAR 
ALI KHAN): No interruptions please. 
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SHRI P. CHETIA: So far as putting down 
the National Flag was concerned it was done 
by a small group of young men. I do not 
know whether they were students or ex-
students. It is a fact that these elements, 
these hooligans pulled down the flags from 
many houses, and they pulled down flags 
from the offices of the Congress, the P.S.P., 
etc. We are sorry for it, but it should not be 
taken for granted that the entire students 
community is responsible for it. These 
yougmen do not know the background of the 
flag. We are sorry for it. But it should not 
have been taken for granted that the entire 
students are responsible. This small section 
of students, they do not know that the 
national flag represents the nation and the, 
country, they are ignorant of that. So 
somebody must have incited them to do it. 
The Chief Minister stated in the Assembly 
on the 23rd that there are certain foreign 
elements there in Gauhati. He  said— 

"It would not foe denied that external 
forces had also reflections on these 
incidents." 

There is one important factor that I would 
like to mention so far as the cycle factory is 
concerned. The incident took place (between 
1.30 and 3.00 P.M. The people of Gauhati 
came to know about this incident only on the 
following day's morning. But it was 
broadcast by Radio Pakistan in the evening 
even mentioning about the location of the 
factory. That shows who were the foreign 
hands in this matter because how did they 
come to know about the incidents that took 
place between 1.30 and 300 P.M. on the 26th 
January in thte cycle factory? But Radio 
Pakistan broadcast it in the evening. The 
people of Gauhati came to know about it 
only the next morning. That shows that there 
is some sort of foreign hand in this matter. 

Sir, I am very grateful to you for giving 
me this opportunity to speak. 

We are really sorry for the disturbances that 
had taken place at Gauhati; we all feel really 
sore about them and we are distressed. With 
these words, I take my seat. 

SHRI M. RUTHNASWAMY 
(Madras); This morning we saw Parliament's 
attention being turned to disorders of the 
students in the South and this evening we 
have been treated to reports of disorders in 
the North, so that it seems to me that the 
balance of disorders has been well set by the 
happenings which we heard about in this 
House during the course of the day. 

It is a most depressing, distressful and even 
dis-reputable state of affairs that has been 
revealed by newspaper and personal reports in 
regard to the happenings in Assam. Law and 
order seems to have broken down completely 
on the eve of the last Republic Day and during 
the course of the Republic Day. The Central 
Government has been castigated on the floor 
of this House for its negligence in regard to 
this matter. But may I remind the House that 
the maintenance, of law and order, of peace 
and order, is the primary and principal 
concern Of the State Government? It is the 
State Government that is first of all 
responsible, most of all responsible, for the 
maintenance of law and order. And by all 
accounts, the State Government has 
completely failed. 

We saw on this occasion, as on many other 
occasions—for instance on the eve of the New 
Year's day in New Delhi and in Berhampore 
towards the end of last year—the behaviour of 
the police The main feature of police 
behaviour nowadays seems to be to look on 
while things happen; they just look on or turn 
to the other side when disorderly things are 
happening under their very nose. This is a 
very sorry state of affairs. Who is responsible 
for it? On inquiry we have found both in 
Berhampore and in other places, that the 
police    looked    for    instructions 
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[Shri Ruthnaswamy] (trom the headquarters 
as to what they should do in any particular cir-
cumstance. May I ask whether under the new 
regime, under the Congress regime, Ministers 
issue instructions to the police to wait for 
instructions to emanate from the 
headquarters? In the old days the head of the 
police department was completely left to 
himself to be responsible for the maintenance 
of peace and order. It was only when the head 
of the police and the police took to unlawful 
actions that the headquarters government 
intervened. Now, it seems that the police are 
helpless in these matters. 

Reference was made to hooligans and 
goondas taking advantage of these 
movements amongst the students or among 
adult citizens. But what is the police doing? 
Again, in regard to this matter, there are so 
many sections in the Criminal Procedure 
Code and in the Police Acts which authorise 
the police to take preventive action, to 
proceed against those who are likely to bring 
about disorder in a city or in any place. They 
are authorised to detain temporarily people 
whom they suspect of resorting to unlawful 
actions. Why JS not this being done? Why are 
the lections of the Criminal Procedure Code 
and the Police Acts not being used by the 
police now-a-days? 

And then reference was also made— I think 
the Home Minister himself referred to it in the 
debates in the other House—that sections of 
the Central Police are posted in the States in 
order to look after the protection of Clentra) 
Government properties or in order to aid the 
local police. What is the strength of the 
Central Armed Reserves in Assam? And what 
do they do in order to help the local police? 
What do they do in order to protect the 
Central Government properties like the 
airport. From a report received from one of 
our Members, Mr. Patodia of the other House 
who went to make an on-the-ipot study of the 
situation, it appears 

that the airport had been attacked and an air-
hostess has been even injured. In such a period 
of disturbances, is it not the duty of the Central 
Government to see that Central Armed 
Reserve Police is posted at stations belonging 
to the Central Government? And what is the 
strength of the police? Is the strength of the 
police adequate in any State to meet these new 
challenges to peace and order? These 
challenges to peace and order in modern times 
are becoming very serious. These challenges 
are organised challenges. They are created 
almost every other day. They use all the 
modern methods open to disturb peace and 
order. Is there any census kept of these 
hooligans and goondas in every city so that 
preventive action can be taken against them? 
Prevention is better than cure in this case as in 
almost all other cases. And preventive action 
by the police could have prevented many of 
these acts of disorder which are becoming 
almost endemic if not epidenic in this country. 
And what is that all due to? And what about 
the passivity of the Chaliha Ministry? It is 
acknowledged that they did not do anything in 
order either to prevent the occurrence of these 
disorders or in order to suppress this disorder 
when it took place. Are they trying to teach the 
Central Government a lesson for its 
progressive policy in regard to the grant of 
autonomy ta certain portions of Assam? Are 
they wanting the Central Government to 
realise that if they go on with this progressive 
policy, the Assam Government will not be 
interested in the maintenance of peace and 
order in its own territory? Or is it due to the 
large infiltration of people from Pakistan, 
which infiltration may disturb the balance 
between the two major communities, Hindus 
and Muslims? Has this infiltration led to the 
tension that exists between the two countries? 
Not only Muslims, but other people from other 
parts of the country have settled down. There 
is a large community of Marwaris who 
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have settled down there. When I visited 
Chirapunji station, I found a Marwari settled 
there, keeping a dukan, a place for money-
lending. Are these settlements of "foreigners" in 
Assam disturbing the minds of the people of 
Assam? Formerly, a: few years ago when the 
Bengali-Assamese riots took place, the contention 
of the Assamese people was that the Bengalis 
were overcrowding Assam, that they were 
monopolising all the chief offices in the State in 
industry, in commerce. All these things have to 
be looked into, and the Central Government must 
take a very intimate interest in the affairs of 
States with sensitive areas like Assam. 

Sir, Mr. Bhargava revealed that there was an 
enquiry and a report j has been sent. Why should 
that report not be placed on the Table of the 
House so that we may know the details of all these 
disorders, especially the causes of these disorders? 
Is it because of the Chaliha Ministry's 
involvement in this matter, or are there, any 
charges against the Chaliha Ministry that they 
have not been up to the mark in the maintenance 
of peace and order, especially in the prevention of 
these disturbances that this report is not being 
made public? It would be a service to this House 
and to Parliament and to the public if this report 
were made public so that we may know the 
reality, the truth of the situation. All these 
disturbances are really very disturbing to those 
who want peacje and order to be maintained so 
that the progress of the country may be sustained 
because without the elementary conditions of 
peace and order, no great progress can be 
predicted for this country. 
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1. Assam   type   house (burnt)    value Rs.  
50,000 

SHRI SUNDAR SINGH BHAN-DARI: 
Type house run by whom? 

SHRI A. M. TARIQ: It was his own 
house. 

SHRI SUNDAR SINGH BHAN-DARI: 
Type house run by whom? That is what you 
do not know. 

SHRI A. M. TARIQ: Then, Nazmul 
Hussain (Assamese) double storeyed 
Assamese type building, one burnt, value Rs. 
70,000. Then, Asfl Khatun (Assamese) widow 
of Nurul Islam), one Assam type House, 
burnt, value Rs.   50,000. 

 

Shri Dayal Sarma of Marwari community, 
having grocery shop near Gauhati Club is still 
living with family at Hidayetpur with a 
Muslim family. 

SHRI     SUNDAR     SINGH    BHAN-
DARI: I accept it 

 


